
Town Hall, 186 Main Street, Newmarket, NH 
NHNH

9/1/2022  

Capital Improvement Plan Committee 
September 6, 2022 at 6:00 PM to 8:00 PM 

Council Chambers, Town Hall 

AGENDA 

1. Pledge of Allegiance

2. Approval of Minutes: September 14, 2021 & August 30, 2022

3. Review of 2023 CIP Requests by Department

4. Discussion Regarding the Request for Presentations

5. Other Business

6. Adjourn



1 
 

Town Hall, 186 Main Street, Newmarket, NH  8/30/2022 
Capital Improvement Plan Committee (CIP) 

 1 
 2 

      Capital Improvement Committee (CIP) 3 

Town Hall Auditorium 4 

August 30, 2022 5 

DRAFT MEETING MINUTES 6 

 7 

Members Present: Jane Ford (Planning Board Rep), Richard Lesavoy (Budget 8 

Committee Rep), Bart McDonough (Director of Community Development), Philip 9 

Nazzaro (School Board Rep), Brian Ward (Town Council Rep- Alternate) 10 

Members Absent: Danielle Honan (Budget Committee Rep- Alternate) and 11 

Colin D. White Sr. (Town Council Rep) 12 

 13 

The meeting was called to order at 7:05 PM by Bart McDonough. 14 

 15 

1.  Pledge of Allegiance 16 

 17 

2.                    Introductions 18 

All present introduced themselves. Brian Ward was appointed a voting member this 19 

evening. A quorum of four members was established. 20 

 21 

3.                    Review of Rules and Procedures  22 

Bart McDonough reviewed the rules and procedures provided in the CIP packet. There 23 

were no questions. 24 

 25 

4.                    Election of Chair, Vice Chair and Coordinator  26 

 27 

                                                           Action 28 

Motion:     Jane Ford moved to elect Phil Nazzaro as Chair  29 

                               and Rich Lesavoy as Vice-Chair for the CIP this year.                       30 

Second:    Brian Ward 31 

Discussion:  None 32 

Vote:                      Approved 4-0-0 33 

a 34 

5.                    Review of Process, Forms, Instruction Manual, and Final Product 35 

Bart began the discussion of the process, forms to be used, the instruction manual, and 36 

the final project. He felt that the CIP should return to the basics by following RSA 674:5 37 

through 674:8 and the Master Plan. He will email everyone a copy of the Master Plan 38 

and a copy of all of the Project Request Forms to review prior to the 2nd meeting. The 39 



2 
 

Town Hall, 186 Main Street, Newmarket, NH  8/30/2022 
Capital Improvement Plan Committee (CIP) 

3rd meeting will be the scheduled meeting with those submitting Project Request Forms. 1 

A 4th meeting will be called to finish the ranking of the projects. The final CIP report is 2 

due to the Town Manager by September 15. The School Project Request Forms will be 3 

due at a later date TBD.  4 

 5 

The members discussed amending the process by making approvals at the next 6 

meeting for those proposals that require no further explanation. If any proposals require 7 

further information, then the submitter would be asked to attend the 3rd meeting. This 8 

will save considerable time for the Department/School/Commission heads.  9 

 10 

                                                           Action 11 

Motion:     Brian Ward moved to elect Bart McDonough as CIP Coordinator. 12 

Second:    Rich Lesavoy 13 

Discussion:  None 14 

Vote:                     Approved 4-0-0 15 

 16 

6.                      Schedule  17 

Members agreed on the next three meetings - dates/time: 18 

 19 

2nd meeting – Tuesday, September 6, 2022 at 6:00 PM place TBA 20 

3rd meeting – Thursday, September 8, 2022 at 5:30 PM place TBA 21 

4th meeting – Monday, September 12, 2022 at 6:00 PM place TBA 22 

 23 

7.                       Other  24 

None 25 

 26 

8.                       Adjourn 27 

 28 

                                                           Action 29 

Motion:               Brian Ward moved to adjourn at 7:35 PM 30 

Second:              Rich Lesavoy 31 

Discussion:           None 32 

Vote:                      Approved 4-0-0 33 

 34 

 35 

The next meeting will be held on Tuesday, September 6, 2022 at 6:00 PM. 36 

 37 

 Respectfully submitted, 38 

 39 

Sue Frick 40 

Recording Secretary   41 



1 
 

                                                                                                                                             Draft Minutes  

TOWN OF NEWMARKET, NH 

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM (CIP) COMMITTEE 

Monday, September 14, 2020 

4:30 PM Virtual Zoom Meeting 

 

Call to Order by Chair Russ Simon:  4:30 PM 

Members Present: Russ Simon (Chair & Member at Large), Joe Lamattina (Vice Chair & Budget Committee 

Rep), Amy Burns (Town Council Rep), Jane Ford (Planning Board Rep – Alternate), Ted Seely (Planning Board 

Rep), Gary Swanson (School Board Rep), Roger Cady, (Budget Committee- Alternate) was present as a non-

voting member  

Members Absent: Mike Kenison (School Board Rep-Alternate) and Jonathan Kiper (Town Council Rep – 

Alternate) 

Also Present: Diane Hardy (Coordinator) and Sue Frick (Recording Secretary) 

Agenda 

1. Approval of Minutes 
No minutes to approve at this time. 

 
2. Discussion of Recommendation Process 

The CIP members had several questions about the process of funding and ranking of projects. All 
questions were discussed and resolved to the satisfaction of all. It was felt that a cover letter expressing 
some recommendations be included with the report to the Town Manager and the Town Council and the 
specifics of the letter will be discussed further later in the meeting. The Committee reviewed the priority 
rankings for the CIP matrix.  
---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
Priority Rankings: 
“U” for urgent if the project is required to remedy an existing threat to public health or safety, or is 

required to rectify grossly inadequate, but essential, public facilities or services.  

“C” for compulsory if the project is required by statute, law, regulation, contract, or other obligation.  

“N” for necessary if the project is needed to maintain existing standards or levels of service. 

“D” for desirable if the project would be beneficial to the community but is not considered necessary, 

compulsory, or urgent.  
----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- --------------------- 

3. CIP Committee’s Recommendations 
Diane Hardy prepared information detail sheets and an overview of the recommendations for the committee 
including past history of budget funding. Without this time-consuming prep work each year, the CIP would be 
lost. Thank you Diane! 
----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

Public Works - Four Requests Individually 

PW-1 Public Works – Vehicles/Equipment 
                                                       Action 

Motion:       Joe Lamattina made a motion to recommend funding of PW-1 at $195,360. 

Second:       Amy Burns 

Discussion: No discussion 

Vote:           Unanimously Approved  

 

 

 



2 
 

 

                                                                                                                                              Draft Minutes  

                                                              Action 

Motion       Russ Simon made a motion to recommend the priority ranking of “N”. 

Second:       Amy Burns 

Discussion: No discussion 

Vote:           Unanimously Approved 

 

PW-2 Road Improvements                 
                                                               Action 

Motion: Joe Lamattina made a motion to recommend funding of PW-2 at $250,000 and 

with a priority ranking of “N”. 

Second:       Gary Swanson 

Discussion: No discussion 

Vote:           Unanimously Approved 

 

PW-3 Stormwater Management 
                                                               Action 

Motion: Russ Simon made a motion to recommend funding of PW-3 at $25,000 and  

with a priority ranking of “U/C”. 

Second:       Amy Burns 

Discussion: No discussion 

Vote:           Unanimously Approved 

 

PW-4 Stormwater Improvements New Road 
                                                               Action 

Motion: Amy Burns made a motion to recommend funding of PW-4 at $285,900 and 

with a priority ranking of “N”. 

Second:       Ted Seely 

Discussion: No discussion            

Vote:           Unanimously Approved 

 

Facilities - Eighteen Requests Individually 

F-1 Beech Street Ext. Senior Center 

                                                                            Action 

Motion:      Joe Lamattina made a motion to recommend $0 for F-1 and a priority ranking of “D”. 

Second:      Gary Swanson 

Discussion:  Members were concerned that they did not have enough information about this project. 

Vote:            Unanimously Approved 

 

F-2 Community Center Portable Bleachers 
                                                                           Action 

Motion:      Joe Lamattina made a motion to recommend $0 for F-2 and a priority ranking of “NA”. 

Second:      Gary Swanson 

Discussion: After some discussion, Joe Lamattina amended his motion to recommend $0 for F-2 and 

     a priority ranking of “C”. 

Second:       Ted Seely 

Vote:            Unanimously Approved 

 

 

 



3 
 

 

                                                                                                                                              Draft Minutes  

F-3 Community Center Camera System (Security)  
                                                          Action 

Motion      Joe Lamattina made a motion to recommend funding of F-3 for $12,450 with a  

                     priority ranking of “N”. 

Second:      Jane Ford 

Discussion:  No Discussion 

Vote:            Unanimously Approved 

 

F-4 Community Center Doorway Key Replacement  
                                                               Action 

Motion:      Joe Lamattina made a motion to recommend funding of F-4 for $14,600 with a 

                     ranking of “N”.  

Second:       Gary Swanson 

Discussion: No discussion 

Vote:       Unanimously Approved 

 

F-5 Community Center Athletic Field Improvement  
                                                               Action 

Motion:      Gary Swanson made a motion to recommend funding of F-5 for $0 with a 

                     ranking of “D”.  

Second:       Joe Lamattina 

Discussion: No discussion 

Vote:      Unanimously Approved 

 

F-6 Updated Skateboard Park 

                                                                 Action 

Motion:      Russ Simon made a motion to recommend funding of F-6 for $18,333 with a 

                     ranking of “U”.  

Second:       Ted Seely 

Discussion: No discussion 

Vote:       Unanimously Approved 

 

  F-7 Police Department Security Improvements was withdrawn from consideration. 

 

F-8 Police Department Booking Area Improvements  
                                                               Action 

Motion:      Gary Swanson made a motion to recommend funding of F-8 for $19,653 with a 

                     ranking of “U”.  

Second:       Jane Ford 

Discussion: No discussion 

Vote:      Unanimously Approved 

 

F-9 Town Hall Brick and Stone Repointing/Repairs  
                                                              Action 

Motion:       Joe Lamattina made a motion to recommend funding of F-9 for $63,900 with a 

                     ranking of “U”.  

Second:       Gary Swanson 

Discussion:  No discussion 

Vote:       Unanimously Approved 

 



4 
 

                                                                                                                                              Draft Minutes  

F-10 Town Hall Electrical Improvements  
                                                               Action 

Motion:      Russ Simon made a motion to recommend funding of F-10 for $57,760 with a 

                     ranking of “U”.  

Second:       Gary Swanson 

Discussion: No discussion 

Vote:      Unanimously Approved 

 

F-11 Town Hall Fire Department Detection Replacement 

                                                               Action 

Motion:      Gary Swanson made a motion to recommend funding of F-11 for $0 with a 

                     ranking of “N”.  

Second:       Amy Burns 

Discussion: No discussion 

Vote:      Unanimously Approved 

 

F-12 Town Hall Interior Improvements  
                                                               Action 

Motion:      Amy Burns made a motion to recommend funding of F-12 for $0 with a 

                     ranking of “D”.  

Second:       Gary Swanson 

Discussion: No discussion 

Vote:      Unanimously Approved 

 

F-13 Town Hall Network Cabling Repairs and Replacement 

                                                               Action 

Motion:      Joe Lamattina made a motion to recommend funding of F-13 for $15,300 with a 

                     ranking of “D”.  

Second:       Ted Seely 

Discussion: No discussion 

Vote:      Unanimously Approved 

 

F-14 Town Hall Keying System Improvements  
                                                                Action 

Motion:      Amy Burns made a motion to recommend funding of F-14 for $10,500 with a 

                     ranking of “D”.  

Second:       Gary Swanson 

Discussion: No discussion 

Vote:      Unanimously Approved 

 

F-15 Town Hall Roof Surveillance System 

                                                               Action 

Motion:      Gary Swanson made a motion to recommend funding of F-15 for $10,000 with a 

                     ranking of “D”.  

Second:       Jane Ford 

Discussion: This is a reduction in the amount requested. 

Vote:      Unanimously Approved 

 

 

 

 



5 
 

                                                                                                                                              Draft Minutes  

F-16 Town Hall Exterior Storefront Replacement 

                                                               Action 

Motion:      Amy Burns made a motion to recommend funding of F-16 for $0 with a 

                     ranking of “D”.  

Second:       Gary Swanson 

Discussion: No discussion 

Vote:      Unanimously Approved 

 

F-17 Town Hall Roof Recertification Program 

                                                               Action 

Motion:      Joe Lamattina made a motion to recommend funding of F-17 for $26,000 with a 

                     ranking of “N”.  

Second:       Amy Burns 

Discussion: No discussion 

Vote:      Unanimously Approved 

 

F-18 Fire Department Second Floor Renovations 

                                                                  Action 

Motion:      Russ Simon made a motion to recommend funding of F-18 for $48,700 with a 

                     ranking of “D”.  

Second:       Ted Seely 

Discussion: No discussion 

Vote:      Approved 5-1-0 

 

F-19 Public Works - Roof 
                                                                    Action 

Motion:      Gary Swanson made a motion to recommend funding of F-19 for $345,000 with a 

                     ranking of “U”.  

Second:       Amy Burns 

Discussion: No discussion 

Vote:      Unanimously Approved 

 

Library - Four Requests as a Group 
                                                             Action 

Motion:      Russ Simon made a motion to recommend the following requests as a group totaling 

$40,000: F-20 and F-21 with a ranking of “D” and F-22 and F-23 with a ranking of “N”. 

  

F-20 Newmarket Library Pedestrian Improvement for $9,900. Rank “D” 

F-21 Newmarket Library Interior Plaster and Wall Repairs for $9,900. Rank “D” 

F-22 Newmarket Library ADA Access Improvement for $10,200. Rank of “N” 

F-23 Newmarket Library Roof Improvements for $10,000. Rank of “N” 

 

Second:       Amy Burns 

Discussion: No discussion 

Vote:           Unanimously Approved 

 

 

 

 

 



6 
 

                                                                                                                                             Draft Minutes  

Fire/Rescue - Two Requests as a Group 

                                                           Action 

Motion: Gary Swanson made a motion to recommend funding for FR-1 and FR-2 totaling 

$138,950 and with rankings of “N”. 

 

FR-1 Vehicles for $90,250 with a priority ranking of “N”. 

FR-2 Protective Equipment for $48,700 with a priority ranking of “N”. 

 

Second:         Amy Burns 

Discussion:   No discussion 

Vote:              Unanimously Approved 

 

Planning – One Request 

P-1 Newmarket Master Plan  
                                                              Action 

Motion Russ Simon made a motion to recommend funding of P-1 at $10,000 and with 

a priority ranking of “C”. 

Second:       Gary Swanson 

Discussion: No discussion 

Vote:           Unanimously Approved 

                    
Police – One Request 

PD-1 Vehicles was withdrawn from consideration. 

PD-2 Dispatch Communications 
                                                            Action 

Motion:      Amy Burns made a motion to recommend funding of PD-2 for $26,066 with 

                     a priority ranking of “N”.  

Second:       Gary Swanson 

Discussion: No discussion 

Vote:           Unanimously Approved 

 
Other – One Request 

O-1 Heron Point Sanctuary Pedestrian Bridge 
                                                            Action 

Motion Joe Lamattina made a motion to recommend funding of O-1 for $0 with a 

priority ranking of “D”.  

Second:       Gary Swanson 

Discussion: No discussion 

Vote:           Unanimously Approved 

 

Recreation – Four Requests Individually 

R-1 Large Permanent Shade and Rain Shelter  
                                                           Action 

Motion Joe Lamattina made a motion to recommend funding of R-1 for $0 with a 

priority ranking of “D”.  

Second:       Gary Swanson 

Discussion: No discussion 

Vote:           Unanimously Approved 
 



7 
 

                                                                                                                                             Draft Minutes  

R-2 Splash Pad and Restrooms at Leo Landroche 

                                                                      Action 
Motion:       Ted Seely made a motion to recommend funding of R-2 at $36,772 and with

       a priority ranking of “N”. 

Second:        Gary Swanson 

Discussion:  No discussion 

Vote:       Unanimously Approved   

 

R-3 Recreation Equipment 
                                                                         Action 

Motion:       Joe Lamatinna made a motion to recommend funding of R-3 at $11,333 and 

       with a priority ranking of “N”. 

Second:        Amy Burns 

Discussion:  No discussion 

Vote:       Unanimously Approved   

 

R-4 Sunrise Sunset Patio 
                                                                         Action 

Motion:       Joe Lamatinna made a motion to recommend funding of R-4 at $13,000 and 

       with a priority ranking of “D”. 

Second:        Russ Simon 

Discussion:  No discussion 

Vote:       Approved 5-1-0   

 

Water and Sewer – Ten Requests as a Group 

                                                                 Action 

Motion:      Russ Simon made a motion to recommend the following requests for Water & Sewer 

     at the 2021-22 requested funding level and with a priority ranking of “N” for all. 

 

W-1 New 750,000 Gallon Water Tower $100,000 

W-2 Vehicles – Water $14,585 

 

S-1 Vehicles – Sewer $21,668 

S-2 Creighton Street Pumping Station $51,504 

S-3 Other Pump Station Improvements $200,000 

S-4 WWTF -1 $53,222 

S-5 WWTP -2 $19,962 

S-6 WWTP -3 $51,350 

S-7 WWTP -4 $6,500 

S- 8 WWTP Improvements – Clarifier Covers $35,000 

 

Second:       Gary Swanson 

Discussion: No discussion 

Vote:      Unanimously Approved 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



8 
 

                                                                                                                                             Draft Minutes  

Schools - Six Requests Individually 

S-1 School - Vehicles 
                                                                         Action 

Motion:       Joe Lamatinna made a motion to recommend funding of S-1 at $8,862 and     

       with a priority ranking of “N”. 

Second:        Russ Swanson 

Discussion:  No discussion 

Vote:       Approved 5-1-0  

 

S-2 Newmarket School Turf Field 
                                                                         Action 

Motion:       Amy Burns made a motion to recommend funding of S-2 at $0 and  

                      with a priority ranking of “D”. 

Second:        Gary Swanson 

Discussion:  No discussion 

Vote:       Unanimously Approved  

 

S-3 Elementary School Classroom Renovations 
                                                                         Action 

Motion:       Gary Swanson made a motion to recommend funding of S-3 at $50,000 and  

                      with a priority ranking of “N”. 

Second:        Amy Burns 

Discussion:  No discussion 

Vote:       Unanimously Approved  

 

S-4 Jr/Sr High School Courtyard Landscaping 
                                                                         Action 

Motion:       Joe Lamatinna made a motion to recommend funding of S-4 at $0 and  

                      with a priority ranking of “D”. 

Second:        Gary Swanson 

Discussion:  No discussion 

Vote:       Unanimously Approved  

 

S-5 Newmarket Jr/Sr High School Parking 
                                                                         Action 

Motion:       Joe Lamatinna made a motion to recommend funding of S-5 at $175,500 and  

                      with a priority ranking of “N”. 

Second:        Ted Seely 

Discussion:  No discussion 

Vote:       Unanimously Approved  

 

S-6 Newmarket Elementary School Playground 
                                                                         Action 

Motion:       Gary Swanson made a motion to recommend funding of S-6 at $0 and  

                      with a priority ranking of “D”. 

Second:        Amy Burns 

Discussion:  No discussion 

Vote:       Unanimously Approved  

----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- ------------- 

The above actions completed the Recommendations and Priority Rankings for the FY21-22 CIP. 

----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- -------------- 



9 
 

                                                                                                                                             Draft Minutes  

4. Plans for a Cover Letter to Accompany the Report to the Town Manager and the Town Council with 

Recommendations from the CIP Committee: 

After considerable discussion, many members of the CIP felt that they should prepare a cover letter in 

order to make recommendations/suggestions to the TM and TC which would accompany the report this 

year. A letter will be drafted with the specific assistance of Joe Lamattina, Russ Simon, and Diane Hardy. 

All members, however, will be given the opportunity to make suggestions before the letter goes forward. 

 
                                                                         Action 

Motion: Gary Swanson made a motion that the cover letter express all the                                                                            

recommendations, suggestions, and discussions of the members. 

Second:        Amy Burns 

Discussion:  No discussion 

Vote:       Unanimously Approved  

 

 

The formal presentation of the report to the Town Council will happen at a date TBA in October 

(Tentatively, October 24.) Usually both the CIP and Budget Committee members are present along with 

the Department Heads. 

 

The Chair and members wish to thank Diane Hardy for her amazing and dedicated work as 

Coordinator again this year. Thank you so much Diane! 

 

Adjourn: 
                                                            Action 

Motion: Jane Ford made a motion to adjourn. 

Second:       Amy Burns 

Vote:           Unanimously Approved 

 

 

The meeting was adjourned at 7:30 PM. 

The next virtual meeting will be scheduled at a time to be determined. 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

Sue Frick, Recording Secretary  Thank you Sue! 
 

 



Newmarket Capital Improvement Program (CIP)

Project Request Form

Department:

Submitted By: Date: 8/22/2022 Priority: N Project Cost: 500,000$    

2.   How will this expenditure improve service, productivity

       or lower operating costs to the Town of Newmarket?

3.   Is this a replacement item? 

       If NOT, how was the need previously met?

4.   List name of firm and price of quotes received. 

FY 23/24 FY 24/25 FY 25/26 FY 26/27 FY 27/28 FY 28/29

General Fund

Capital Reserve/Trust Fund Balance 25,000$          25,000$          25,000$          25,000$          25,000$          25,000$          

Bonds

Grants

Enterprise Fund

Impact Fees

Other Fundraising

25,000$          25,000$          25,000$          25,000$          25,000$          25,000$          

Project Funds:

Public Works

Rick Malasky

Project Title: Building Improvement

All town owned buildings repair and replacement of roofs, flooring, HVAC etc.

Total

229,235$                     

PHOTOGRAPHReplacement of assets

Yes

Wellness Center

Page 4 Public Works 2023 -  DPW-1 Town of Newmarket - CIP



Newmarket Capital Improvement Program (CIP)
 Capital Equipment Request  Form

Public Works Vehicles/Equipment

Description Year Mileage
 of Equipment and Vehicles Acquired Cost Year FY 23/24  FY 24/25  FY 25/26 FY 26/27  FY 27/28  FY 28/29

1 #1 Ford F350 w/plow 2015 40,000 2025/2026 75,738     5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000

2 #4 Ford F350 w/plow 2019 40,000 2029/2030 53,795       5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000

3 #10 Ford F550 One Ton w/plow2019 90,000 2029/2030 16,919       15,000 15,000 15,000 15,000 15,000 15,000

4 #20 Ford F450 One Ton w/plow2016 90,000 2026/2027 43,890       15,000 15,000 15,000 15,000 15,000 15,000

5 #14 John Deere Loader 2006 180,000 2026/2027 6,288         18,000 18,000 18,000 18,000 18,000 18,000

6 #32 John Deere Backhoe 2013 160,000 2029/2030 3,596         16,000 16,000 16,000 16,000 16,000 16,000

7 #5 Intl. Dump/Plow/Sander 2019 165,000 2029/2030 11,123       16,500 16,500 16,500 16,500 16,500 16,500

8 #6 Intl. Dump/Plow/Sander 2015 165,000 2027/2028 25,554       16,500 16,500 16,500 16,500 16,500 16,500

9 #7 Intl. Dump/Plow/Sander 2022 150,000 2031/2032 50,784       50,784       50,784       50,784       50,784       50,784       50,784      

10 #9 Intl. Dump/Plow/Sander 2012 165,000 2024/2025 50,784       50,784       50,784       50,784       50,784       50,784       50,784      

11 #11 Intl. Dump/Plow/Sander 2022 165,000 2030/2031 540            16,500 16,500 16,500 16,500 16,500 16,500

12 #17 Pelican Sweeper 2019 250,000 2029/2030 1,481         25,000 25,000 25,000 25,000 25,000 25,000

13 #21 Trackless MT-5 Tractor 2013 185,000 2023/2024 2,030         60,000 60,000 60,000 60,000 60,000 60,000

14 #42 Trackless MT-5 Tractor 2010 185,000 2022/2023 2,218         60,000 60,000 60,000 60,000 60,000 60,000

15 #16 Mack Roll-off 2017 200,000 2030/2031 53,722       20,000 20,000 20,000 20,000 20,000 20,000

16 #24 Mahindra Tractor 2015 36,000 2030/2031 1,988         7,200 7,200 7,200 7,200 7,200 7,200

17 Silverado 1500 Pickup 2015 29,000 2028/2029 39,765       2,900 2,900 2,900 2,900 2,900 2,900

18 #38 Bucket Truck 2016 95,000 2031/2032 10,196       9,500 9,500 9,500 9,500 9,500 9,500

19 #15 Ford F150 Pickup 2011 29,000 2023/2024 61,859       2,900 2,900 2,900 2,900 2,900 2,900

20 #47 Intl. Vac-Con 2004 250,000 2030/2031 9,119         25,000 25,000 25,000 25,000 25,000 25,000

187,227 150,000     150,000     150,000     150,000     150,000     150,000    

Items to be replaced in FY 23/24

1

2

3

5,000.00$                                           12,000Trackless MT-5 2010

Repair/Maintenance Cost

Department:

Estimated Disposable ValuePrevious Year

Type of Equipment:

Replacement

Proposed FundingBalance in Capital Reserve Fund

Make/Model/Year

Public Works 2023 -  DPW-2
Town of Newmarket - CIP



Newmarket Capital Improvement Program (CIP)

Project Request Form

Department:

Submitted By: Date: 8/22/2022 Priority: N Project Cost: 1,000,000$    

2.   How will this expenditure improve service, productivity

       or lower operating costs to the Town of Newmarket?

3.   Is this a replacement item? 

       If NOT, how was the need previously met?

4.   List name of firm and price of quotes received. 

FY 23/24 FY 24/25 FY 25/26 FY 26/27 FY 27/28 FY 28/29

General Fund

Capital Reserve/Trust Fund Balance 250,000$        250,000$        250,000$        250,000$        250,000$        250,000$            

Bonds

Grants

Enterprise Fund

Impact Fees

Other Fundraising

Total

276,659$                     

PHOTOGRAPHThis will improve the road surface for traffic and winter maintenance.

UNH T2 and Strafford Regional Planning Comission.

1.   General Project Description?

Project Funds:

Public Works

Rick Malasky

Project Title: Roadway Improvement

This projest is recommended in the six year road plan that the town has adopted.

Wellness Center

Page 4 Public Works 2023 -  DPW-3 Town of Newmarket - CIP



Newmarket Capital Improvement Program (CIP)

Project Request Form

Page 4 Public Works 2023 -  DPW-3 Town of Newmarket - CIP



Newmarket Capital Improvement Program (CIP)

Project Request Form

Department:

Submitted By: Date: 8/22/2022 Priority: N Project Cost: Unknown

2.   How will this expenditure improve service, productivity

       or lower operating costs to the Town of Newmarket?

3.   Is this a replacement item? 

       If NOT, how was the need previously met?

4.   List name of firm and price of quotes received. 

FY 23/24 FY 24/25 FY 25/26 FY 26/27 FY 27/28 FY 28/29

General Fund

Capital Reserve/Trust Fund Balance 25,000$          25,000$          25,000$          25,000$          25,000$          25,000$          

Bonds

Grants

Enterprise Fund

Impact Fees

Other Fundraising

25,000$          25,000$          25,000$          25,000$          25,000$          25,000$          

1.   General Project Description?

Project Funds:

Public Works

Rick Malasky

Project Title: Stormwater Management

MS4 requirements 

Total

204,584$                     

PHOTOGRAPHThis will improve water quality and is required from the EPA.

No

Underwood Engineers

Wellness Center

Page 4 Public Works 2023 -  DPW-4 Town of Newmarket - CIP



Newmarket Capital Improvement Program (CIP)

Project Request Form

Page 4 Public Works 2023 -  DPW-4 Town of Newmarket - CIP



Newmarket Capital Improvement Program (CIP)

Capital Equipment Request Form 

Police/Dispatch

Description Year Mileage
 Equipment and Vehicles Acquired Cost Year FY 23/24  FY 24/25  FY 25/26 FY 26/27  FY 27/28  FY 27/28

1 Emergency Gen. PD 2006 25,000$            2027 NA 1,666$            1,666$              1,666$            1,666$          Replace 1,666$          

2 Emergency Gen. GH 2010 6,000$              2025 NA 600$               600$                 Replace 600$             600$            600$             

3 Antennas Great Hill 2007 10,000$            2020 NA 1,100$            1,100$              1,100$            1,100$          1,100$         1,100$          

4 2 Station Disp Console 2006 150,000$          2023 NA 12,500$          12,500$            Replace 12,500$        12,500$       12,500$        

5 FIre Base Radio GH 2018 15,000$            2028 NA 1,500$            1,500$              1,500$            1,500$          1,500$         1,500$          

6 Digital Base GH 2018 15,000$            2028 NA 1,500$            1,500$            1,500$          1,500$        1,500$         1,500$          

7 Dispatch AC Unit 1 2015 6,000$              2025 NA 600$               Replace 600$             600$           600$            600$             

8 Dispatch AC Unit 2 2010 6,000$              2023 NA 600$               600$               600$             600$           600$            600$             

9 Portable/Mobile Radios 1998 11,942$            2024 NA Replace 3,500$            3,500$          Replace 3,500$         3,500$          

10 Audio Recording Monitor 2016 16,000$            2026 NA 1,800$            1,800$            1,800$          Replace 1,800$         1,800$          

11 Video Recording Monitor 2015 16,000$            2025 NA 1,800$            1,800$            Replace 1,800$        1,800$         1,800$          

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

175,292$          23,666$          26,566$            12,266$          21,866$        25,500$         27,166$          

Items to be replaced in FY 23/24

1

2

3

3 Portable Radio's Motorola APX 6000 TBD$2,200.00

Repair/Maintenance Cost

Department:

Estimated Disposable ValuePrevious Year

Type of Equipment:

Replacement

Proposed FundingBalance in Capital Reserve Fund

Make/Model/Year

Radios, Monitors and Emergency Equipment

Police Department 2023 -PD 1 Town  of  Newmarket - CIP



Newmarket Capital Improvement Program (CIP)
 Capital Equipment Request  Form

Description Year Mileage
 of Equipment and Vehicles Acquired Cost Year FY 23/24  FY 24/25  FY 25/26 FY 26/27  FY 27/28 FY 28/29

1 2023 Ford Interceptor N/A $62,000 2023 N/A   

2       

3       

4       

5       

6  

7  

8  

9  

10  

11  

12  

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

59,559.00

Items to be replaced in FY 23/24

1

2

3

N/AN/A

Balance in Capital Reserve Fund

Make/Model/Year

Adding additional vehicle to fleet 2023

POLICE Vehicles

Repair/Maintenance Cost

Department:

Estimated Disposable ValuePrevious Year

Type of Equipment:

Replacement

Proposed Funding

Police 2023 Vehicles PD-2 Town of Newmarket - CIP



Newmarket Capital Improvement Program (CIP)

Project Request Form

Department:

Submitted By: Date: 8/25/2022 Priority: N Project Cost: $15,000

2.   How will this expenditure improve service, productivity

       or lower operating costs to the Town of Newmarket?

3.   Is this a replacement item? 

       If NOT, how was the need previously met?

4.   List name of firm and price of quotes received. 

FY 23/24 FY 24/25 FY 25/26 FY 26/27 FY 27/28 FY 28/29

General Fund

Capital Reserve/Trust Fund Balance 5,000$             5,000$             5,000$             

Bonds

Grants

Enterprise Fund

Impact Fees

Other Fundraising

5,000$             5,000$             5,000$             5,000$             5,000$             5,000$             

1.   General Project Description?

Project Funds:

Police

Chief Gregory Jordan

Project Title: Building Expansion Services

Explore best options to add space to a building we have outgrown.

Total

175,292$                     

PHOTOGRAPHHiring an architect and engineer would offer best solution.

No.     Currently staff is overcrowed in patrol room, locker room and records.

Wellness Center

Police 2023      PD-3 Town of Newmarket - CIP



Newmarket Capital Improvement Program (CIP)

Project Request Form

Police 2023      PD-3 Town of Newmarket - CIP



Newmarket Capital Improvement Program (CIP)

Project Request Form

Department:

Submitted By: Date: 8/25/2022 Priority: N Project Cost: $19,825

2.   How will this expenditure improve service, productivity

       or lower operating costs to the Town of Newmarket?

3.   Is this a replacement item? 

       If NOT, how was the need previously met?

4.   List name of firm and price of quotes received. 

FY 23/24 FY 24/25 FY 25/26 FY 26/27 FY 27/28 FY 28/29

General Fund

Capital Reserve/Trust Fund Balance 5,000$             5,000$             5,000$             

Bonds

Grants

Enterprise Fund

Impact Fees

Other Fundraising

5,000$             5,000$             5,000$             5,000$             5,000$             5,000$             Total

175,292$                     

PHOTOGRAPHImmediately connects to the State of New Hampshire allowing instant access.

 Yes.  Replaces traditional inkpad and card fingerprinting.  Equipped with State 

of NH Tri-State AFIS for direct submission to the AFIS system. 

Idemia  $19,825

1.   General Project Description?

Project Funds:

Police

Chief Gregory Jordan

Project Title: Livescan Printing

Kiosk style livescan fingerprinting station.

Wellness Center

Police 2023      PD-4 Town of Newmarket - CIP



Newmarket Capital Improvement Program (CIP)

Project Request Form

Police 2023      PD-4 Town of Newmarket - CIP



Newmarket Capital Improvement Program (CIP)
 Capital Equipment Request  Form

Fire Rescue Vehicles

Description Year Mileage
 of Equipment and Vehicles Acquired Cost Year FY 23/24  FY 24/25  FY 25/26 FY 26/27  FY 27/28  FY 28/29

1 E-One Pumper 2021 600,000 2046/2047 2,624 50,000 50,000 50,000 50,000 50,000 50,000

2 L2 HME 2009 800,000 2029/2030 23,205 0 0 0 0 0 0

3 Tanker 4 Spartan 2006 500,000 2025/2026 19,125 0 0 0 50,000 50,000 50,000

4 Forestry Ford F350 2003 85,000 2030/2031 9,925 0 0 0 0 0 0

5 Rescue Boat 2017 20,000 2037/2038 n/a 0 0 0 0 0 0

6  

7  

8  

9  

10

11  

12  

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

129,215 50,000       

Items to be replaced in FY 23/24

1

2

3

None

Repair/Maintenance Cost

Department:

Estimated Disposable ValuePrevious Year

Type of Equipment:

Replacement

Proposed FundingBalance in Capital Reserve Fund

Make/Model/Year

Town of Newmarket - CIP



Newmarket Capital Improvement Program (CIP)
 Capital Equipment Request  Form

Creighton Street Pumping Station

Description Year Mileage
 of Equipment and Vehicles Acquired Cost Year FY 23/24  FY 24/25  FY 25/26 FY 26/27  FY 27/28  FY 28/29

1 HEADWORKS BUILDING 1969     

2 Roof 2000 $25,000 2025 $2,778 $2,778 $2,778 $2,778 $2,778 $2,778

3 Mechanical Screen 2016 $119,000 2032 $7,933 $7,933 $7,933 $7,933 $7,933 $7,933

4 HVAC 2017 $20,000 2032 $1,333 $1,333 $1,333 $1,333 $1,333 $1,333

5 PUMP BUILDING 1969     

6 Roof 2000 $12,500 2025 $1,389 $1,389 $1,389 $1,389 $1,389 $1,389

7 Pump 1 2000 $62,000 2035 $6,889 $6,889 $6,889 $6,889 $6,889 $6,889

8 Pump 2 2000 $62,000 2035 $6,889 $6,889 $6,889 $6,889 $6,889 $6,889

9 Pump 3 2000 $62,000 2035 $6,889 $6,889 $6,889 $6,889 $6,889 $6,889

10 VFD 1 2000 $11,500 2025 $1,278 $1,278 $1,278 $1,278 $1,278 $1,278

11 VFD 2 2000 $11,500 2025 $1,278 $1,278 $1,278 $1,278 $1,278 $1,278

12 VFD 3 2000 $11,500 2025 $1,278 $1,278 $1,278 $1,278 $1,278 $1,278

13 SCADA Panel 2000 $20,000 2025 $2,222 $2,222 $2,222 $2,222 $2,222 $2,222

14 HVAC 2000 $13,800 2020 $3,459 $3,459 $3,459 $3,459 $3,459 $3,459

15 Generator Transfer Switch 2000 $16,000 2040 $667 $667 $667 $667 $667 $667

16 Generator  2000 $65,000 2025 $7,222 $7,222 $7,222 $7,222 $7,222 $7,222

17

18

19

20

$257,520 $51,504 $51,504 $51,504 $51,504 $51,504 $51,504

Items to be replaced in FY 23/24

1

2

3

Repair/Maintenance Cost

Department:

Estimated Disposable ValuePrevious Year

Type of Equipment:

Replacement

Proposed FundingBalance in Capital Reserve Fund

Make/Model/Year

Wastewater

Water and Sewer 2023 - WS-1

Town of Newmarket - CIP



Newmarket Capital Improvement Program (CIP)
 Capital Equipment Request  Form

Description Year Mileage
 of Equipment and Vehicles Acquired Cost Year FY 23/24  FY 24/25  FY 25/26 FY 26/27  FY 27/28  FY 28/29

1 Submersbile Well Pump 1 2021 $48,000 2056 $1,371 $1,371 $1,371 $1,371 $1,371 $1,371

2 VFD Submersible Well Pump 1 2021 $15,000 2046 $600 $600 $600 $600 $600 $600

3 Roof 2016 $15,000 2046 $790 $790 $790 $790 $790 $790

4 Electrical Panels 2016 $60,000 2051 $2,069 $2,069 $2,069 $2,069 $2,069 $2,069

5 Generator 2016 $70,000 2041 $3,684 $3,684 $3,684 $3,684 $3,684 $3,684

6 Generator Transfer switch 2016 $25,000 2051 $735 $735 $735 $735 $735 $735

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

$0 $9,249 $9,249 $9,249 $9,249 $9,249 $9,249

Items to be replaced in FY 23/24

Department:

Estimated Disposable ValuePrevious Year

Type of Equipment:

Replacement

Proposed FundingBalance in Capital Reserve Fund

Make/Model/Year

Water MacIntosh Well

Water and Sewer 2023 - WS-2 Town of Newmarket - CIP



Newmarket Capital Improvement Program (CIP)
 Capital Equipment Request  Form

1

2

3

Repair/Maintenance Cost

Water and Sewer 2023 - WS-2 Town of Newmarket - CIP



Newmarket Capital Improvement Program (CIP)

Project Request Form

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

31

32

A B C D E F G H I J K L

Department:

Submitted By: Date: 8/12/2022 Priority: N Project Cost: 1,785,000$     

This work is for the Salmon Street, Cedar Street, and Packers  Falls pump

stations. The stations have original equipment that is approaching 50 years

old. The controls are almost 20 years old.

2.   How will this expenditure improve service, productivity

       or lower operating costs to the Town of Newmarket?

This work will improve reliability and eliminate safety hazards for

Department personnel. (To be Provided by Department)

3.   Is this a replacement item? 

       If NOT, how was the need previously met?

 

4.   List name of firm and price of quotes received. 

Underwood Cost Design

Salmon Street $675,000 $65,000

Packers Falls $450,000 $55,000

Cedar Street $660,000 $65,000

FY 23/24 FY 24/25 FY 25/26 FY 26/27 FY 27/28 FY 28/29

General Fund

Capital Reserve/Trust Fund Balance

Bonds

Grants

Enterprise Fund $200,000 200,000$        200,000$        200,000$        200,000$        200,000$        

Other

Commence FY: 200,000$        200,000$        200,000$        200,000$        200,000$        200,000$        

Water and Sewer 2023 - WS-3

Total2023

$100,000

PHOTOGRAPH

1.   General Project Description?

Project Funds:

Sean T. Greig

Pump Station ImprovementsProject Title:

9/2018 1 Town of Newmarket - CIP



Newmarket Capital Improvement Program (CIP)
 Capital Equipment Request  Form

Description Year Mileage
 of Equipment and Vehicles Acquired Cost Year FY 23/24  FY 24/25  FY 25/26 FY 26/27  FY 27/28  FY 28/29

1 Sewer Ford PU 2017 $32,000 2029 24,640 $2,667 $2,667 $2,667 $2,667 $2,667 $2,667

2 Sewer/Water Utility Ford PU 2019 $32,000 2031 0 $2,667 $2,667 $2,667 $2,667 $2,667 $2,667

3 Water/Sewer Ford PU 2022 $16,000 2034 7,113 $1,460 $1,460 $1,460 $1,460 $1,460 $1,460

4 Water/Sewer Ford PU 2014 $15,000 2026 16,027 $1,250 $1,250 $1,250 $1,250 $1,250 $1,250

5 Water/Sewer/Drain Vacon 2004 $330,000 2026 8,078 $7,334 $7,334 $7,334 $7,334 $7,334 $7,334

6 Godwin Bypass pump 2008 $30,000 2028 $1,500 $1,500 $1,500 $1,500 $1,500 $1,500

7 LUll 2018 $60,000 2030 $5,000 $5,000 $5,000 $5,000 $5,000 $5,000

8  

9  

10  

11  

12 Balance  

13 Sewer Ford PU 2017 $10,668

14 Sewer/Water Utility Ford PU 2019 $5,334

15 Water/Sewer Ford PU 2022 $0

16 Water/Sewer Ford PU 2014 $11,250

17 Water/Sewer/Drain Vacon 2004 $74,178

18 Godwin Bypass pump 2008 $7,500

19 Lull 2018 $15,000

20

$123,930 $21,878 $21,878 $21,878 $21,878 $21,878 $21,878

Items to be replaced in FY 23/24

1

2

3

Repair/Maintenance Cost

Department:

Estimated Disposable ValuePrevious Year

Type of Equipment:

Replacement

Proposed FundingBalance in Capital Reserve Fund

Make/Model/Year

Wastewater Trucks

Water and Sewer 2023 - WS-4
Town of Newmarket - CIP



Newmarket Capital Improvement Program (CIP)
 Capital Equipment Request  Form

Description Year Mileage
 of Equipment and Vehicles Acquired Cost Year FY 23/24  FY 24/25  FY 25/26 FY 26/27  FY 27/28  FY 28/29

1 Water Ford PU 2018 30,000$   2030 26,300 2,084$       2,084$       2,084$       2,084$       2,084$       2,084$      

2 Sewer/Water Utility Ford PU 2019 32,000$   2031 8,078 2,667$       2,667$       2,667$       2,667$       2,667$       2,667$      

3 Water/Sewer Ford PU 2022 16,000$   2034 7,113 1,400$       1,400$       1,400$       1,400$       1,400$       1,400$      

4 Water/Sewer Ford PU 2014 15,000$   2026 15,027 1,250$       1,250$       1,250$       1,250$       1,250$       1,250$      

5 Water/Sewer/Drain Vacon 2004 330,000$ 2024 7,334$       7,334$       7,334$       7,334$       7,334$       7,334$      

6

7

8  

9  

10  

11  

12 Balance  

13 Water Ford PU 2018 8,336$     

14 Sewer/Water Utility Ford PU 2019 8,001$     

15 Water/Sewer Ford PU 2036 1,460$     

16 Water/Sewer Ford PU 2014 11,250$   

17 Water/Sewer/Drain Vacon 2004 110,557$ 

18

19

20

$139,604 $14,735 $14,735 $14,735 $14,735 $14,735 $14,735

Items to be replaced in FY 23/24

1

2

3

Repair/Maintenance Cost

Department:

Estimated Disposable ValuePrevious Year

Type of Equipment:

Replacement

Proposed FundingBalance in Capital Reserve Fund

Make/Model/Year

Water Trucks

Water and Sewer 2023 - WS-5 Town of Newmarket - CIP



Newmarket Capital Improvement Program (CIP)
 Capital Equipment Request  Form

Description Year Mileage
 of Equipment and Vehicles Acquired Cost Year FY 23/24  FY 24/25  FY 25/26 FY 26/27  FY 27/28  FY 28/29

1 HCL Chemical Feed Pump 2 2021 $7,600 2031 $760 $760 $760 $760 $760 $760

2 Ferric Chemical Feed Pump 1 2021 $7,600 2031 $760 $760 $760 $760 $760 $760

3 Ferric Chemical Feed Pump 2 2021 $7,600 2031 $760 $760 $760 $760 $760 $760

4 CaOCL Chemical Feed Pump 1 2021 $7,600 2031 $760 $760 $760 $760 $760 $760

5 CaOCL Chemical Feed Pump 2 2021 $7,600 2031 $760 $760 $760 $760 $760 $760

6 CaOCL Chemical Feed Pump 3 2021 $7,600 2031 $760 $760 $760 $760 $760 $760

7 MCC 2021 $117,000 2056 $3,343 $3,343 $3,343 $3,343 $3,343 $3,443

8 VFD- BW Pump 1 2021 $11,500 2046 $460 $460 $460 $460 $460 $460

9 VFD BW Pump 2 2021 $11,500 2046 $460 $460 $460 $460 $460 $460

10 VFD RES Pump 1 2021 $11,500 2046 $460 $460 $460 $460 $460 $460

11 VFD RES Pump 2 2021 $11,500 2046 $460 $460 $460 $460 $460 $460

12 VFD FW Pump 1 2021 $11,500 2046 $460 $460 $460 $460 $460 $460

13 VFD FW Pump 2 2021 $11,500 2046 $460 $460 $460 $460 $460 $460

14 VFD FW Pump 3 2021 $11,500 2046 $460 $460 $460 $460 $460 $460

15 Boiler 2021 $29,000 2046 $1,160 $1,160 $1,160 $1,160 $1,160 $1,160

16 Generator Transfer Switch 2021 $32,000 2061 $800 $800 $800 $800 $800 $800

17

18

19

20

$0 $13,083 $13,083 $13,083 $13,083 $13,083 $13,183

Items to be replaced in FY 23/24

Department:

Estimated Disposable ValuePrevious Year

Type of Equipment:

Replacement

Proposed FundingBalance in Capital Reserve Fund

Make/Model/Year

Water Water Treatment Plant Equipment P2

Water and Sewer 2023 - WS-6
Town of Newmarket - CIP



Newmarket Capital Improvement Program (CIP)
 Capital Equipment Request  Form

1

2

3

Repair/Maintenance Cost

Water and Sewer 2023 - WS-6
Town of Newmarket - CIP



Newmarket Capital Improvement Program (CIP)
 Capital Equipment Request  Form

Description Year Mileage
 of Equipment and Vehicles Acquired Cost Year FY 23/24  FY 24/25  FY 25/26 FY 26/27  FY 27/28  FY 28/29

1 Roof 2021 $125,000 2046 $5,000 $5,000 $5,000 $5,000 $5,000 $5,000

2 Iron and Manganese Filters 2021 $837,000 2061 $20,900 $20,900 $20,900 $20,900 $20,900 $20,900

3 Backwash Pump 1 2021 $32,000 2056 $915 $915 $915 $915 $915 $915

4 Backwash Pump 2 2021 $32,000 2056 $915 $915 $915 $915 $915 $915

5 Residuals Pump 1 2021 $17,000 2046 $680 $680 $680 $680 $680 $680

6 Residuals Pump 2 2021 $17,000 2046 $680 $680 $680 $680 $680 $680

7 Chemical Fill Station 2021 $8,700 2046 $348 $348 $348 $348 $348 $348

8 Generator w/vaporizer 2021 $145,000 2046 $5,800 $5,800 $5,800 $5,800 $5,800 $5,800

9 Rolling Door 2021 $18,000 2041 $900 $900 $900 $900 $900 $900

10 Sewer Force Main 2021 $128,000 2071 $2,560 $2,560 $2,560 $2,560 $2,560 $2,560

11 Clearwell Baffle Curtain 2021 $22,000 2041 $1,100 $1,100 $1,100 $1,100 $1,100 $1,100

12 SCADA (Hardware, etc:) 2021 $35,000 2036 $2,333 $2,333 $2,333 $2,333 $2,333 $2,333

13 HVAC 2021 $290,000 2041 $14,500 $14,500 $14,500 $14,500 $14,500 $14,500

14 HACH EZ2000 Iron Analyzer 2021 $56,000 2036 $3,733 $3,733 $3,733 $3,733 $3,733 $3,733

15 Surge Anticipation Valve 2021 $12,000 2056 $342 $342 $342 $342 $342 $342

16 NaOH 1600 Gallon Bulk Tank 2021 $16,000 2041 $800 $800 $800 $800 $800 $800

17 NaOH Chemical Feed Pump 1 2021 $7,600 2031 $760 $760 $760 $760 $760 $760

18 NaOH Chemical Feed Pump 2 2021 $7,600 2031 $760 $760 $760 $760 $760 $760

19 HCL 1600 Gallon Bulk Tank 2021 $16,000 2041 $800 $800 $800 $800 $800 $800

20 HCL Chemical Feed Pump 1 2021 $7,600 2031 $760 $760 $760 $760 $760 $760

$0 $64,586 $64,586 $64,586 $64,586 $64,586 $64,586

Items to be replaced in FY 23/24

Department:

Estimated Disposable ValuePrevious Year

Type of Equipment:

Replacement

Proposed FundingBalance in Capital Reserve Fund

Make/Model/Year

Water Water Treatment Plant Equipment P1

Water and Sewer 2023 - WS-6
Town of Newmarket - CIP



Newmarket Capital Improvement Program (CIP)
 Capital Equipment Request  Form

1

2

3

Repair/Maintenance Cost

Water and Sewer 2023 - WS-6
Town of Newmarket - CIP



Newmarket Capital Improvement Program (CIP)
 Capital Equipment Request  Form

Wastewater Treatment Facility Page 1

Description Year Mileage
 of Equipment and Vehicles Acquired Cost Year FY 23/24  FY 24/25  FY 25/26 FY 26/27  FY 27/28  FY 28/29

1 Maintenance Building 1969     

2 Primary Sludge Pump 1 2017 $28,750 2042 $1,150 $1,150 $1,150 $1,150 $1,150 $1,150

3 Primary Sludge Pump 2 2017 $28,750 2042 $1,150 $1,150 $1,150 $1,150 $1,150 $1,150

4 Dewatering Pump 1 2017 $28,750 2042 $1,150 $1,150 $1,150 $1,150 $1,150 $1,150

5 Dewatering Pump 2 2017 $28,750 2042 $1,150 $1,150 $1,150 $1,150 $1,150 $1,150

6 Sludge Grinder 2017 $24,000 2032 $1,600 $1,600 $1,600 $1,600 $1,600 $1,600

7 Sludge Tank Blower 1 2017 $28,750 2042 $1,150 $1,150 $1,150 $1,150 $1,150 $1,150

8 Sludge Tank Blower 2 2017 $28,750 2042 $1,150 $1,150 $1,150 $1,150 $1,150 $1,150

9 Electrical Panels 2017 $540,000 2042 $15,429 $15,429 $15,429 $15,429 $15,429 $15,429

10 HVAC 2017 $57,500 2042 $2,300 $2,300 $2,300 $2,300 $2,300 $2,300

11 Roof 2017 $43,750 2042 $1,750 $1,750 $1,750 $1,750 $1,750 $1,750

12 Boiler 2019 $100,000 2039 $5,000 $5,000 $5,000 $5,000 $5,000 $5,000

13 Dewatering Building 1985         

14 Dewatering Press 2017 $210,000 2037 $7,500 $7,500 $7,500 $7,500 $7,500 $7,500

15 Conveyor 1 2017 $42,000 2037 $1,500 $1,500 $1,500 $1,500 $1,500 $1,500

16 Conveyor 2 2017 $55,000 2037 $2,000 $2,000 $2,000 $2,000 $2,000 $2,000

17 Polymer System 2017 $69,000 2037 $2,500 $2,500 $2,500 $2,500 $2,500 $2,500

18 Residual Chlorine Pump 1 2017 $16,500 2027 $1,500 $1,500 $1,500 $1,500 $1,500 $1,500

19 Roof 2017 $31,000 2042 $1,000 $1,000 $1,000 $1,000 $1,000 $1,000

20 Boiler 2017 $22,000 2042 $600 $600 $600 $600 $600 $600

21 HVAC 2017 $41,000 2037 $1,500 $1,500 $1,500 $1,500 $1,500 $1,500

22 Electrical Panels 2017 $117,000 2052 $2,143 $2,143 $2,143 $2,143 $2,143 $2,143

$266,110 $53,222 $53,222 $53,222 $53,222 $53,222 $53,222

Items to be replaced in FY 23/24

1

2

Repair/Maintenance Cost

Department:

Estimated Disposable ValuePrevious Year

Type of Equipment:

Replacement

Proposed FundingBalance in Capital Reserve Fund

Make/Model/Year

Wastewater

Water and Sewer 2023 - WS-7
Town of Newmarket - CIP



Newmarket Capital Improvement Program (CIP)
 Capital Equipment Request  Form

3

Water and Sewer 2023 - WS-7
Town of Newmarket - CIP



Newmarket Capital Improvement Program (CIP)
 Capital Equipment Request  Form

Wastewater Treatment Facility Page 2

Description Year Mileage
 of Equipment and Vehicles Acquired Cost Year FY 23/24  FY 24/25  FY 25/26 FY 26/27  FY 27/28  FY 28/29

1 Control Building 2017         

2 Blower 1 2017 $48,000 2037 $1,750 $1,750 $1,750 $1,750 $1,750 $1,750

3 Blower 2 2017 $48,000 2037 $1,750 $1,750 $1,750 $1,750 $1,750 $1,750

4 Blower 3 2017 $48,000 2037 $1,750 $1,750 $1,750 $1,750 $1,750 $1,750

5 Return Sludge Pump 1 2017 $29,000 2042 $800 $800 $800 $800 $800 $800

6 Return Sludge Pump 2 2017 $29,000 2042 $800 $800 $800 $800 $800 $800

7 Return Sludge Pump 3 2017 $29,000 2042 $800 $800 $800 $800 $800 $800

8 Waste Sludge Pump 1 2017 $26,000 2042 $720 $720 $720 $720 $720 $720

9 Waste Sludge Pump 2 2017 $26,000 2042 $720 $720 $720 $720 $720 $720

10 Motor Operated Valve 1 2017 $13,000 2032 $667 $667 $667 $667 $667 $667

11 Motor Operated Valve 2 2017 $13,000 3032 $667 $667 $667 $667 $667 $667

12 Roof 2017 $43,000 2042 $1,200 $1,200 $1,200 $1,200 $1,200 $1,200

13 Boiler 2017 $27,000 2047 $600 $600 $600 $600 $600 $600

14 SCADA (Programming, Hardware, etc:)2017 $53,000 2032 $2,667 $2,667 $2,667 $2,667 $2,667 $2,667

15 HVAC 2017 $41,000 2037 $1,500 $1,500 $1,500 $1,500 $1,500 $1,500

16 Electrical Panels 2017 $194,000 2052 $3,571 $3,571 $3,571 $3,571 $3,571 $3,571

17

18

19

20

$99,810 $19,962 $19,962 $19,962 $19,962 $19,962 $19,962

Items to be replaced in FY 23/24

1

2

3

Repair/Maintenance Cost

Department:

Estimated Disposable ValuePrevious Year

Type of Equipment:

Replacement

Proposed FundingBalance in Capital Reserve Fund

Make/Model/Year

Wastewater

Water and Sewer 2023 - WS-7

Town of Newmarket - CIP



Newmarket Capital Improvement Program (CIP)
 Capital Equipment Request  Form

Wastewater Treatment Facility Page 3

Description Year Mileage
 of Equipment and Vehicles Acquired Cost Year FY 23/24  FY 24/25  FY 25/26 FY 26/27  FY 27/28  FY 28/29

1 Site Various WWTF      

2 Primary Clarifier Drive 1 2017 125,000 2047 $2,783 $2,783 $2,783 $2,783 $2,783 $2,783

3 Primary Clarifier Drive 2 2017 125,000 2047 $2,783 $2,783 $2,783 $2,783 $2,783 $2,783

4 Thickener Drive 1985 90,000 2025 $15,000 $15,000 $15,000 $15,000 $15,000 $15,000

5 Secondary Clarifier Drive 1 2017 150,000 2047 $3,333 $3,333 $3,333 $3,333 $3,333 $3,333

6 Secondary Clarifier Drive 2 2017 150,000 2047 $3,333 $3,333 $3,333 $3,333 $3,333 $3,333

7 Plant Water System 2017 104,000 2037 $3,750 $3,750 $3,750 $3,750 $3,750 $3,750

8 Lower Pump Station Pump 1 2017 2,025 2032 $667 $667 $667 $667 $667 $667

9 Lower Pump Station Pump 2 2017 2,026 2032 $667 $667 $667 $667 $667 $667

10 Aeration Tank Mixer 1 2017 21,000 2032 $1,200 $1,200 $1,200 $1,200 $1,200 $1,200

11 Aeration Tank Mixer 2 2017 21,000 2032 $1,200 $1,200 $1,200 $1,200 $1,200 $1,200

12 Aeration Tank Mixer 3 2017 21,000 2032 $1,200 $1,200 $1,200 $1,200 $1,200 $1,200

13 Aeration Tank Mixer 4 2017 21,000 2032 $1,200 $1,200 $1,200 $1,200 $1,200 $1,200

14 Aeration Tank Mixer 5 2017 21,000 2032 $1,200 $1,200 $1,200 $1,200 $1,200 $1,200

15 Aeration Tank Mixer 6 2017 21,000 2032 $1,200 $1,200 $1,200 $1,200 $1,200 $1,200

16 Aeration Internal Recycle Pump 12017 22,000 2032 $1,267 $1,267 $1,267 $1,267 $1,267 $1,267

17 Aeration Internal Recycle Pump 22017 22,000 2032 $1,267 $1,267 $1,267 $1,267 $1,267 $1,267

18 Aeration Air Piping 2017 47,000 2052 $1,000 $1,000 $1,000 $1,000 $1,000 $1,000

19 Sludge Holding Tank Blower 1 2017 21,500 2037 $900 $900 $900 $900 $900 $900

20 Sludge Holding Tank Blower 2 2017 21,500 2037 $900 $900 $900 $900 $900 $900

21 Sludge Holding Tank 1 Air Piping2017 16,000 2042 $500 $500 $500 $500 $500 $500

22 Sludge Holding Tank 2 Air Piping2017 16,000 2042 $500 $500 $500 $500 $500 $500

23 Generator 2017 156,000 2042 $5,000 $5,000 $5,000 $5,000 $5,000 $5,000

24 Generator Transfer Switch 2017 28,000 2057 $500 $500 $500 $500 $500 $500

$256,750 $51,350 $51,350 $51,350 $51,350 $51,350 $51,350

Items to be replaced in FY 23/24

Repair/Maintenance Cost

Department:

Estimated Disposable ValuePrevious Year

Type of Equipment:

Replacement

Proposed FundingBalance in Capital Reserve Fund

Make/Model/Year

Wastewater

Water and Sewer 2023 - WS-7

Town of Newmarket - CIP



Newmarket Capital Improvement Program (CIP)
 Capital Equipment Request  Form

1

2

3

Water and Sewer 2023 - WS-7

Town of Newmarket - CIP



Newmarket Capital Improvement Program (CIP)
 Capital Equipment Request  Form

Wastewater Treatment Facility Page 4

Description Year Mileage
 of Equipment and Vehicles Acquired Cost Year FY 23/24  FY 24/25  FY 25/26 FY 26/27  FY 27/28  FY 28/29

1 Site Various WWTF      

2 Sludge Holding Tank 1 Air Piping2017 16,000$     2042 500$          500$          500$          500$          500$          500$         

3 Sludge Holding Tank 2 Air Piping2017 16,000$     2042 500$          500$          500$          500$          500$          500$         

4 Generator 2017 156,000$   2042 5,000$       5,000$       5,000$       5,000$       5,000$       5,000$      

5 Generator Transfer Switch 2017 28,000$     2057 500$          500$          500$          500$          500$          500$         

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

$32,500 $6,500 $6,500 $6,500 $6,500 $6,500 $6,500

Items to be replaced in FY 23/24

1

2

3

Repair/Maintenance Cost

Department:

Estimated Disposable ValuePrevious Year

Type of Equipment:

Replacement

Proposed FundingBalance in Capital Reserve Fund

Make/Model/Year

Wastewater

Water and Sewer 2023 - WS-7
Town of Newmarket - CIP



Newmarket Capital Improvement Program (CIP)

Project Request Form

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

31

32

A B C D E F G H I J K L

Department:

Submitted By: Date: 8/24/2022 Priority: N Project Cost: 1,850,000$     

Purchase property for a new 750,000 gallon water tower.
Constuct New Water Tower.

2.   How will this expenditure improve service, productivity

       or lower operating costs to the Town of Newmarket?

The existing 750,000 gallon water tower was constructed in 1978, and was 

repainted in 1997. The tank has been inspected and will require painting 

within the next couple of years. The tank is undersized for the amount of (To be Provided by Department)

4.   List name of firm and price of quotes received. 

Underwood: $  1,650,000

Property: $  200,000

FY 23/24 FY 24/25 FY 25/26 FY 26/27 FY 27/28 FY 28/29

General Fund

Capital Reserve/Trust Fund Balance

Bonds

Grants

Enterprise Fund 100,000$        100,000$        100,000$        100,000$        100,000$        100,000$        

Other

Commence FY: 100,000$        100,000$        100,000$        100,000$        100,000$        100,000$        

Water and Sewer 2023 - WS-8

1.   General Project Description?

Project Funds:

Water

Sean T. Greig

New 750,000 Gallon Water TowerProject Title:

Total2023

$300,000

PHOTOGRAPH

water the consumed by the town. Recommended storage capacity is 3.0 to

5.0  days. The Town's current storage capacity is 1.7 to 2 days. A new water

tower would give the town adequate storage and improve fire protection.

The new tower would allow the town to take the older tower off-line to

perform painting and maintenance.

9/2018 1 Town of Newmarket - CIP



Newmarket Capital Improvement Program (CIP)

Project Request Form

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

31

A B C D E F G H I J K L

Department:

Submitted By: Date: 8/20/2022 Priority: D Project Cost: $140,000

The secondary Clarifiers require weekly scrubbing to remove algae growth.

Weir covers would block out the sun and would eliminate algae growth.

The algae sloughs of and degrades the effluent quality. The algae growth

causes the plant to violate bacteria limits.

2.   How will this expenditure improve service, productivity

       or lower operating costs to the Town of Newmarket?

Each clarifier requires 6 hours a week of manual scrubbing to remove algae

growth for an estimated labor cost of $36,000 per year. The covers would (To be Provided by Department)
eliminate this task.
3.   Is this a replacement item? 

       If NOT, how was the need previously met?

 

4.   List name of firm and price of quotes received. 

NEFCO Launder Covers - $80,000

Installation -$50,000

Contingency - $10,000

FY 23/24 FY 24/25 FY 25/26 FY 26/27 FY 27/28 FY 28/29

General Fund

Capital Reserve/Trust Fund Balance 50,000   

Bonds

Grants

Enterprise Fund

Other

Commence FY: 50,000 0 0 -$                     -$                     -$                     

1.   General Project Description?

Project Funds:

Sewer

Sean T. Greig

Secondary Clarifier CoversProject Title:

Total2023

$90,000

PHOTOGRAPH

9/2018 Water and Sewer 2023 - WS-9 Town of Newmarket - CIP



Newmarket Capital Improvement Program (CIP)

Project Request Form

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

31

M

9/2018 Water and Sewer 2023 - WS-9 Town of Newmarket - CIP



Newmarket Capital Improvement Program (CIP)

Project Request Form

Department:

Submitted By: Date: 8/26/2022 Priority: N Project Cost: 224,000$       

A permanent shade and light rain shelter structure to cover the basketball court

and new Pickle Ball Courts at Community Center.  Currently, the court does not 

have a roof top to allow for play on hot or rainy days. 

2.   How will this expenditure improve service, productivity

       or lower operating costs to the Town of Newmarket?

In summer 2021 we resurfaced the court to allow both pickle ball and basketball.

A shelter would increase play time on inclement weather days for all ages.   

It would provide a permanent large outdoor covered venue for use during events.

3.   Is this a replacement item? Lower picture on left. 

       If NOT, how was the need previously met?  Newly resurfaced:  1 basketball & 2 pickleball courts (paid from revolving 8K  

No:  A multi-use indoor gym facility is actually our preference. This is also being  

researched, but at this date we do not have any total cost estimates yet. This is why  

we want to keep this project in the CIP for plan until we know more.  

4.   List name of firm and price of quotes received. 

60' x 90' sq ft  - 2021 quote: $105K & $35K installation.  SUPERSPAN HIP Shade Structure #402.5

For future budgeting purposes N.E.R.G. reccomends increasing previous quote    

by 40% - 60% due to current increases steel priceing.    

FY 23/24 FY 24/25 FY 25/26 FY 26/27 FY 27/28 FY 28/29

General Fund

Capital Reserve/Trust Fund Balance 37,333$                  37,333$          37,333$          37,333$          37,333$          37,333$          

Bonds

Grants

Enterprise Fund Revolving Fund or Balance 100,000$        

Impact Fees

Other

Commence FY: 37,333$                  37,333$          37,333$          37,333$          44,167$          137,333$        

1.   General Project Description?

Project Funds:

Recreation 

Aimee Gigandet

Large Permanent Shade & Rain Shelter Project Title:

TotalFY 28/29

171,760$                     

Page 31 Recreation 2023 - Shelter - R-1  Town of Newmarket - CIP



Newmarket Capital Improvement Program (CIP)

Project Request Form

Page 31 Recreation 2023 - Shelter - R-1  Town of Newmarket - CIP



Newmarket Capital Improvement Program (CIP)

Project Request Form

Department:

Submitted By: Date: 8/26/2022 Priority: N Project Cost: up to 100K

Maintain,  upgrade and /or add to the new Aqua Land Splash Pad (2000 sq ft) with 

a 3,000 gallon water reserve tank & water treatment filtration system. 

2.   How will this expenditure improve service, productivity

       or lower operating costs to the Town of Newmarket?

The existing H20 features and filtration system may need to be replaced, upgraded, or

added to in the future.  By setting aside funds for this possibility eliminates a (To be Provided by Department)
a break in service.  Replacement costs can vary from 5K - 100K.

3.   Is this a replacement item? 

       If NOT, how was the need previously met?

Yes, this amount is for replacement or upgraded H20 features moving forward. 

Also, mechanical replacements costs as needed. 

4.   List name of firm and price of quotes received. 

Original Manufacturers, Contractors, & Installers of Splash Pad are as follows:  

Rain Drop, MGC Development, and New England Recreation Group.

FY 23/24 FY 24/25 FY 25/26 FY 26/27 FY 28/29 FY 29/30

General Fund .

Capital Reserve/Trust Fund Balance 5,000$             5,000$             5,000$             5,000$             5,000$             5,000$             

Bonds

Grants

Enterprise Fund

Impact Fees

Other

Commence FY: 5,000$             5,000$             5,000$             5,000$             5,000$            5,000$            

1.   General Project Description?

Project Funds:

Recreation

Aimee Gigandet

Aqua Land - Splash Pad at Leo LandrocheProject Title:

TotalTBA

171,760$                         

PHOTOGRAPH

Page 32 Recreation 2023 - Splash Pad - R-2 Town of Newmarket - CIP



Newmarket Capital Improvement Program (CIP)
 Capital Equipment Request  Form

Description Year Mileage
 of Equipment and Vehicles Acquired Cost Year FY 23/24  FY 24/25  FY 25/26  FY 26/27  FY 27/28  FY 28/29

1 2008 Ford 15 Pass Bus - ADA 2007 59,870.1 

2 2021 Ford 15 Pass Bus - ADA * 2021 75,000$    2031 3,342.0   

3 2020 Ford 15 Pass Tranist Van * 2021 36,007$    2031 3,421.8   

4

5 All three vehicles are currently * These are the prices paid in 2021, unknown as yet costs for 2031  

6 being used by the Recreation Neither NEW vehicles were paid for by using Capital Reserve Funds  

7 Department

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

$171,760 -$            -$            -$            -$            -$            -$             

Items to be replaced in FY 20/21

1

2

3

Repair/Maintenance Cost

Department:

Estimated Disposable ValuePrevious Year

Type of Equipment:

Replacement

Proposed FundingBalance in Capital Reserve Fund

Make/Model/Year

Recreation Vehicles & Equipment

Page 33 Recreation 2023 - Equipment - R-3 Town of Newmarket - CIP



Newmarket Capital Improvement Program (CIP)

Project Request Form

Department:

Submitted By: Date: 8/22/2022 Priority: N Project Cost: 125K - 150K

To build a new similar size playground in same neighborhood as the one off  

 the Elm Street location.   New location is yet to be determined.

We are open to other options in same park or within same neighborhoos.

2.   How will this expenditure improve service, productivity

       or lower operating costs to the Town of Newmarket?

This playground will replace the playground that is currently at the Little League  

field (built in 2003) and currently is not in the best locatin due to it's close proxiemity . 

to large trees and boulders, etc.  The replacement playground should be relocated.               2 Pics Above

3.   Is this a replacement item?                Current Playground

       If NOT, how was the need previously met?                Not scene in pictures

Yes it is, but it may also service more residents depending on the new               is a small swing set (2)

location.  This playground was built back in 2003 in order to offer  

another option "playground" when Summer Camp is in session.

4.   List name of firm and price of quotes received. 

This is not a quote, but an example of a playground recently built in Exeter                 On Left

This design includes play for ages 2-5 & 5-12 & Swing unit and would probably be                  Replacement Sample

 in the $100K range (approximately) next year according to N.E.R.G.

FY 23/24 FY 24/25 FY 25/26 FY 26/27 FY 27/28 FY 28/29

General Fund

Capital Reserve/Trust Fund Balance 20,000$          20,000$          20,000$          20,000$          20,000$          

Bonds

Grants

Enterprise Fund 50,000$          or Balance

Impact Fees

Other Fundraising

20,000$          20,000$          20,000$          20,000$          70,000$         Total27/28

171,760$                     

1.   General Project Description?

Project Funds:

Recreation

Aimee Gigandet

Project Title: New Playground for Elm Street Area Neighborhood

Wellnss Center

Page 4 Recreation 2022 - New Playground - R-4 Town of Newmarket - CIP



Newmarket Capital Improvement Program (CIP)

Project Request Form

125K - 150K

Page 4 Recreation 2022 - New Playground - R-4 Town of Newmarket - CIP



Newmarket Capital Improvement Program (CIP)

Project Request Form

Department:

Submitted By: Date: 8/26/2022 Priority: D/N Project Cost: 111,118$    

Facility upgrades covering life and safety improvements, structure repairs

fire door installation, HVAC upgrades, new floor,  outdoor decking, 

and miscellaneous facility cosmetic improvements. 

2.   How will this expenditure improve service, productivity

       or lower operating costs to the Town of Newmarket?

Installation of a fire detection system, ADA improvements, replace flooring,

ductless split A/C, furnace, and other cosmetic improvements. The Rec 

Center  will provide Town with a revenue generating Wellness Center.

3.   Is this a replacement item? 

       If NOT, how was the need previously met?

Replacement and overall facility upgrading. Current service is not being 

met and has limitations due to the newness of wellness programs. 

4.   List name of firm and price of quotes received. 

The 2019 in-house design estimate was  $79,370, now adding a 

40% cost increase estimate due to inflated construction costs and new flooring. 

FY 23/24 FY 24/25 FY 25/26 FY 26/27 FY 27/28 FY 28/29

General Fund

Capital Reserve/Trust Fund Balance 50,000$          

Bonds

Grants

Enterprise Fund 50,000$          

Impact Fees 11,118$          

Other Fundraising

111,118$        

1.   General Project Description?

Project Funds:

Recreation

Aimee Gigandet

Project Title: Beech Street Center - New Wellness Center

Total23/24

171,760$                     

PHOTOGRAPH

Heart in the Right 
Place Recreation 
Wellness Center

Page 4 Recreation 2023 -  Beech Street Center - R5 Town of Newmarket - CIP



Newmarket Capital Improvement Program (CIP)

Project Request Form

Department:

Submitted By: Date: 8/30/2021 Priority: D Project Cost: $188,312

The previous skateboard park, located behind the Community Center, was installed

in 2002.  Due safety concerns, it was removed in the Spring of 2021.  The next 

step is to re-visit the project, it's design, budget, proximity, and community needs. 

2.   How will this expenditure improve service, productivity

       or lower operating costs to the Town of Newmarket?

The previous skate park was designed to service the need at the time.   It was 40K.

Due to the increase in costs to build a new park, the plan is to research other options    

that better suit the town's budget, as well as,the demographic that will use the park.  

3.   Is this a replacement item? 

       If NOT, how was the need previously met?

Yes.  As mentioned above, the scope of the project may need to change. This

could be done in several ways,  reduce or increase size, possible change in location,

offering different type features to save $ by utilizing the Rec Complex's hilly areas.  

4.   List name of firm and price of quotes received. 

The below '21 quote will remain in place for 2022/23 CIP purposes.  Next year we   2021 quote picture

will have a concrete $ number after other options have been discussed/researched. option is same style and 

American Ramp Co.  100' X 60' area, $175,312.  Paving  est. @ $10K - 15K. Location

FY 23/24 FY 24/25 FY 25/26 FY 26/27 FY 27/28 FY 28/29

General Fund

Capital Reserve/Trust Fund Balance 25,000.00$           25,000$          25,000$          

Bonds

Grants Town Hawk Grant* 10,000$          

Enterprise Fund Revolving Fund 83,312$          

Other Fundraising 20,000$          

Impact Fees

Commence FY: 25,000$                25,000$          138,312$        

1.   General Project Description?

Project Funds:

Aimee Gigandet

Skateboard ParkProject Title:

Total25/26

171,760$                     

3 Phase Cluster 

 7% discount - Sourcewell 

Page 9 Recreation 2023 - Recreation Skateeboard Park - R-6 Town of Newmarket  - CIP 



Newmarket Capital Improvement Program (CIP)

Project Request Form

Large all weather sound system for community park complex Department:

Submitted By: Date: 8/26/2022 Priority: D Project Cost: 15,500$       

needs of a Leo Landroche & Rec Center's large multi-use sport, community 

2.   How will this expenditure improve service, productivity

       or lower operating costs to the Town of Newmarket?

Installing sound system such as this would allow for wide range communications.

It would also give the flexability to communicate to all or in just select areas of the park.

i.e. announcements at events/athletic games/emergency warnings, etc.
3.   Is this a replacement item? 

       If NOT, how was the need previously met?

No.  The Rec uses walkie talkies on the field to communicate to staff when 

needed.  Walkies break easily and we have to replace many each year.  Currently we 

have very limited "reach" for large announcements via a portable speaker or bull horn.

4.   List name of firm and price of quotes received. 

Football Field Sound System with 4 Atlas Sound Stadium Speakers, 2 Subs,

Stadium Horn, 2 Crown, Power Amplifiers and Bluetooth Mixer

Pro Acoustics Price: $15,500 (does not include instalation)

FY 23/24 FY 24/25 FY 25/26 FY 26/27 FY 27/28 FY 28/29

General Fund

Capital Reserve/Trust Fund Balance 10,000$          

Bonds

Grants

Enterprise Fund 5,500$             , plus installation

Impact Fees

Other Fundraising

Other

15,500$          

1.   General Project Description?

Project Funds:

Recreation

Aimee Gigandet

Project Title:

To install an all weather powerful sound system to meet the demanding audio 

events, & recreation facilities complex where the general public gathers.  

Total23/24

171,760$                     

PHOTOGRAPH

Wellness Center

Page 4 Recreation 2023 - Sound System - R-7 Town of Newmarket - CIP



Newmarket Capital Improvement Program (CIP)

Project Request Form

Department:

Submitted By: Date: 8/25/2022 Priority: N Project Cost: $25,000

2.   How will this expenditure improve service, productivity

       or lower operating costs to the Town of Newmarket?

3.   Is this a replacement item? 

       If NOT, how was the need previously met?

4.   List name of firm and price of quotes received. 

PHOTOGRAPHThis project would provide answers as to whether an accessible entrance can 

be installed below grade, whether sprinklers should be added throughout the 

building, and ideas of how the community would like to see the space 

developed with the ultimate goal of helping to realize the building's full 

potential by utilizing available space for programming, collections, and other 

services.

N/A

I spoke with architects from the firms of Dore & Whittier and Lavalle 

Brensinger who confirmed the cost estimate and expressed an interest in 

bidding on the project.

1.   General Project Description?

Newmarket Public Library

Kerry Cronin

Project Title: Architectural Feasibility Study 

The Newmarket Public Library will contract with an architectural firm to 

complete a feasibility study to determine whether or not the library's 

basement has the capacity to undergo improvements in order to become  

publicly accessible.  This study would determine if a second accessible entrance 

could be added  below grade.  Currently the Newmarket Public Library does 

not have a sprinkler system, which poses a potential threat to health and 

safety and this study would  advise as to whether the addition of such a system 

would be prudent in an historic public library.  The study would also include 

community focus groups so that residents have the opportunity to offer their 

aspirations for future library services and how they envision this project 

meeting those evolving needs.
Wellness Center

Page 4 Library 2023 - L-1 Town of Newmarket - CIP



Newmarket Capital Improvement Program (CIP)

Project Request Form

FY 23/24 FY 24/25 FY 25/26 FY 26/27 FY 27/28 FY 28/29

General Fund

Capital Reserve/Trust Fund Balance 25,000$          -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 

Bonds

Grants

Enterprise Fund

Impact Fees

Other Fundraising

25,000$          Total

130,856.87$               

Project Funds:

Page 4 Library 2023 - L-1 Town of Newmarket - CIP



Newmarket Capital Improvement Program (CIP)

Project Request Form

Page 4 Library 2023 - L-1 Town of Newmarket - CIP



Newmarket Capital Improvement Program (CIP)

Project Request Form

Department:

Submitted By: Date: 8/30/2022 Priority: Project Cost: $116,300

2.   How will this expenditure improve service, productivity

       or lower operating costs to the Town of Newmarket?

3.   Is this a replacement item? 

       If NOT, how was the need previously met?

4.   List name of firm and price of quotes received. 

FY 24/25 FY 25/26 FY 26/27 FY 27/28 FY 28/29 FY 29/30

General Fund

Capital Reserve/Trust Fund Balance 10,000$          10,000$          10,000$          10,000$          10,000$          10,000$          

Bonds

Grants

Enterprise Fund

Impact Fees

Other Fundraising

10,000$          10,000$          10,000$          10,000$          10,000$          10,000$          

1.   General Project Description?

Project Funds:

Building and Grounds

Kerry Cronin, Library Director

Project Title: Newmarket Library Roof Replacement and Repairs

Slate roof replacement and repairs.

Total

130,857$                     

PHOTOGRAPHAsset protection.

 Replacement and repairs to existing slate roofing system.  Repairs in the 

amount of $7,450 will be made during FY2023. 

.RS Means and slate roofing square footage calculator.

Wellness Center

Page 4 Library 2023  - L-2 Town of Newmarket - CIP



Newmarket Capital Improvement Program (CIP)
Project Request Form

Department:

Submitted By: Date: 8/19/2022 Priority: N Project Cost: $50,000

Moonlight Brook outfalls through (3) 24" culvert pipes into the Lamprey River

adjacent to Schanda Park. The culverts are partially blocked by accumulated

sediment and may also be undersized for current stormwater control needs

2.   How will this expenditure improve service, productivity

       or lower operating costs to the Town of Newmarket?

Initial hydraulic study to focus the design of the culvert replacement.

Project will improve stormwater control at the outfall, improve the existing (To be Provided by Department)
public park/brook channel system, and update key infrastructure
3.   Is this a replacement item? 

       If NOT, how was the need previously met?

This project is a replacement of an existing feature. Initial funding request

Is for hydrologic and hydraulic study of the culvert to determine what
replacement feature will be

4.   List name of firm and price of quotes received. 

Soft costs in FY 23/24 include estimated engineering study/analysis for 

Hydrologic & Hydraulic study for new culvert design. Cost is based off

an anticipated range of these studies of $30-50k depending on scope

FY 23/24 FY 24/25 FY 25/26 FY 26/27 FY 27/28 FY 28/29

General Fund 50,000$           

Capital Reserve/Trust Fund Balance

Bonds

Grants

Enterprise Fund

Other

Commence FY: 50,000$           -$                      -$                      -$                      -$                      -$                      

1.   General Project Description?

Project Funds:

Conservation Commission

ConCom/Riverfront Advisory

Moonlight Brook Culvert Outfall / Culvert ReplacementProject Title:

Total23/24

PHOTOGRAPH

Riverfront Advisory Committe-2023-RFC-1 Town of Newmarket - CIP



Newmarket Capital Improvement Program (CIP)
Project Request Form

Department:

Submitted By: Date: 8/19/2022 Priority: N Project Cost: $500,000

The town received a grant for a 50% level design of a living shoreline feature

at Schanda Park along with needed general park improvements including

upgrades to the boat launch, park frontage, and landscaping areas

2.   How will this expenditure improve service, productivity

       or lower operating costs to the Town of Newmarket?

Primary benefit of the project includes improvements to a key public space.

and also creatues a unique ecological feature in the downtown. There is no (To be Provided by Department)
comparable "urban" feature in NH which creates a new attraction to the town
3.   Is this a replacement item? 

       If NOT, how was the need previously met?

The living shoreline replaces existing "hardened" areas along the Lamprey

with an ecological feature. General improvements also replace existing items
(precast planks on the boat ramp to replace gravel added each year, etc.)

4.   List name of firm and price of quotes received. 

FY 23/24 includes soft cost for finalization of engineering design based on 

discussion with a consulting engineer. Also includes public outreach efforts

FY 24/25 placeholder cost to implement the proposed improvements

FY 23/24 FY 24/25 FY 25/26 FY 26/27 FY 27/28 FY 28/29

General Fund 75,000$           425,000$         

Capital Reserve/Trust Fund Balance

Bonds

Grants

Enterprise Fund

Other

Commence FY: 75,000$           425,000$         -$                      -$                      -$                      -$                      

1.   General Project Description?

Project Funds:

Conservation Commission

ConCom/Riverfront Advisory

Schanda Park Living Shoreline / Park ImprovementsProject Title:

Total23/24

PHOTOGRAPH

Riverfront Advisory Committee- 2023-RFC-2 Town of Newmarket - CIP



Newmarket Capital Improvement Program (CIP)

Project Request Form

Department:

Submitted By: Date: 8/30/2022 Priority: N Project Cost: 100,000$    

Under RSA 673:1, it is a responsibility of the Planning Board to prepare a     TOWN OF NEWMARKET MASTER PLAN
Master Plan to guide the development of the community. It is the legal 

basis for the Town's  land use regulations and CIP, and a pre-requisite for 

 the Town  in order to assess development impact fees. 

       or lower operating costs to the Town of Newmarket?

The Charter amendments that were passed in 2014 called for the 

updating of the Town's Master Plan no less frequently than once every 

10 years.  Section 4.16 Town Master Plan, Town Charter amended 3/11/2014

3.   Is this a replacement item? 

       If NOT, how was the need previously met?

Yes, the Planning Department would complete a chapter at a time drawing 

upon grants and assistance from interns, the Strafford Regional Planning

Commission,  volunteers, consultants, and in-house staff.

4.   List name of firm and price of quotes received. 

Experience of other communities which have recently updated their Master 

Plans.            A VISION FOR THE FUTURE | 2025

FY 23/24 FY 24/25 FY 25/26 FY 26/27 FY 27/28 FY 28/29

General Fund

Capital Reserve/Trust Fund Balance 10,000$          10,000$          10,000$          10,000$          10,000$          10,000$          

Bonds

Grants 25,000$          

Enterprise Fund

Impact Fees

Other Fundraising

35,000$          10,000$          10,000$          10,000$          10,000$         10,000$         

1.   General Project Description?

Project Funds:

Recreation

Bart McDonough

Project Title: Newmarket Master Plan Update

Total

80,526$                       

PHOTOGRAPH

Wellness Center

Page 4 Planning 2023 - MPU-1 Town of Newmarket - CIP


	CIP Meeting 2 Agenda
	Draft Minutes CIP August 30-2022
	Draft Minutes September 14 2020-DH
	CIP Requests_2023
	DPW_Building Improvements
	DPW_Public Works Vehicles-Equipment
	DPW_Roadway Improvement
	DPW_Stormwater Management
	Police 2023 Dispatch Communications PD-1
	Police 2023 Police Vehicles PD-2
	Police 2023 CIP Project Building Expansion
	Police 2023 CIP Project Livescan Printing
	Fire Rescue Vehicles
	CIP 2023-24 Creighton Street
	CIP 2023-24 MacIntosh Well
	CIP 2023-24 Pump Station Improvements
	CIP 2023-24 SEWER TRUCKS
	CIP 2023-24 WATER TRUCKS
	CIP 2023-24 Water WTP Page 2
	CIP 2023-24 Water WTP
	CIP 2023-24 WWTF Page 1
	CIP 2023-24 WWTF Page 2
	CIP 2023-24 WWTF Page 3
	CIP 2023-24 WWTF Page 4
	CIP Improvement Water Tower 2023-24
	CIP Improvement WWTP Clarifier Covers 2023-24
	Rec 2023 Shelter R-1
	Rec 2023 Splash Pad R-2
	Rec 2023 Equipment Miscellaneous  R-3
	Rec 2023 Playground at Beaulieu R-4
	Facilities (and Rec) 2023 Beech Street Facility R-5
	Facilities (and Rec) 2023 Skateboard Park R-6
	Rec 2023 Sound System R-7
	NPL_Capital Improvement Program_NPL_FY2024 Request #1
	NPL_Capital Improvement Program_NPL_FY2024 Request #2
	RFC_CIP_Moonlight Brook Culvert Replacement
	RFC_CIP_Schanda Park Improvements
	Planning_2023-2029_Master_Plan_Update


